




http://www.tahoetransportation.org/


Tahoe Transportation Board Meeting Minutes - June 2018 

TAHOE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
 

BUDGET FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
June 8, 2018 

 
Committee Members in Attendance: 

Steve Teshara, SS-TMA  
Ron Treabess, TNT-TMA 
Marsha Berkbigler, Washoe County 
 

Committee Members Absent: 
Will Garner, Placer County 

 
Others in Attendance:  

Carl Hasty, Tahoe Transportation District 
Joanie Schmitt, Tahoe Transportation District 
George Fink, Tahoe Transportation District 
Judi Allen, Tahoe Transportation District  

 
I. PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS  
 No public interest comments were made. 

 
II. RECOMMENDATION OF APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MAY 11, 2018 

Mr. Treabess made the motion to recommend approval of the minutes of May 11, 
2018.  Ms. Berkbigler seconded the motion.  The motion passed. 
 

III. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
(All Items for Possible Recommendation) 
 
A. Review and Acceptance of the District’s Financial Statement of Operations for 

March 2018 
Ms. Schmitt reviewed this item. 
 
Ms. Berkbigler made the motion to recommend acceptance of the Financial 
Statement of Operations for March 2018.  Mr. Treabess seconded the motion.  
The motion passed unanimously. 
 

B. Authorize the Renewal of the District’s Line of Credit with Nevada State Bank 
for One Million Dollars for Purposes of Cash Flow Management for District 
Operations 
Ms. Schmitt reviewed this item. 
 
Mr. Treabess made the motion to recommend authorizing the District Manager 
to execute the renewal of the line of credit agreement with Nevada State 
Bank.  Ms. Berkbigler seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
C. Authorize the District Manager to Award and Enter into a Contract with The 

Aftermarket Parts Company for Wheelchair Lift/Ramp and Parts for the 
Purposes of Maintaining and Repairing TTD’s Bus Fleet 



Tahoe Transportation Board Meeting Minutes – June 2018 2 

Mr. Fink reviewed this item. 
 
Ms. Berkbigler made the motion to recommend authorizing the District 
Manager to award and enter into a contract with The Aftermarket Parts 
Company for wheelchair lift/ramps and parts.  Mr. Treabess seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
IV. PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS  

No public interest comments were made. 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT 
 



Tahoe Transportation Board Meeting Minutes – June 2018 3 

TAHOE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES  

June 8, 2018 
 

TTD/C Board Members in Attendance: 
Steve Teshara, SS-TMA, Chair 
Marsha Berkbigler, Washoe County 
Peter Kraatz, Placer County 
Lucia Maloney, Carson City 
Sue Novasel, El Dorado County  
Ron Treabess, TNT-TMA 
Sondra Rosenberg, NDOT  
  

TTD/C Board Members Absent: 
Nancy McDermid, Douglas County, Vice Chair 
Austin Sass, City of South Lake Tahoe 
Andrew Strain, Member at Large  
Jeff Morneau, Caltrans 
Mike Gabor, U.S. Forest Service 
Neil Mortimer, Washoe Tribe 

 
Others in Attendance:  

Carl Hasty, Tahoe Transportation District 
Joanie Schmitt, Tahoe Transportation District 
George Fink, Tahoe Transportation District 
Russ Nygaard, Tahoe Transportation District 
Danielle Hughes, Tahoe Transportation District 
DeDe Aspero, Tahoe Transportation District 
Michelle Glickert, Tahoe Regional Planning Agency  
Judi Allen, Tahoe Transportation District  

 
I. TAHOE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT AND TAHOE TRANSPORTATION 

COMMISSION CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL 
 

A. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 
The meeting of the Tahoe Transportation District was called to order by 
Chairman Teshara at 9:30 a.m., at the Tahoe City Public Utility District.  Roll 
call was taken and it was determined a quorum was in attendance for the 
TTD. 

 
B. Approval of TTD Agenda of June 8, 2018 

Motion/second by Ms. Berkbigler/Mr. Treabess to approve the TTD agenda for 
today’s meeting. The motion passed unanimously.   

 
C. Approval of TTD/TTC Meeting Minutes for May 11, 2018 

Motion/second by Ms. Novasel/Ms. Berkbigler to approve the TTD and TTC 
minutes, as amended by Mr. Teshara.  The motion passed unanimously.  
 

II. PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS  



Tahoe Transportation Board Meeting Minutes – June 2018 4 

No public interest comments were made. 
 

III. BUDGET FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
Mr. Teshara reported the committee reviewed the items and recommended the 
requested actions of the   items. 

 
IV. TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY ADVISORY PLANNING 

COMMISSION APPOINTEE REPORT 
Mr. Teshara reported the APC meeting is next week and a public hearing will be 
conducted on the Kings Beach State Recreation Area general plan revision and 
pier rebuild project. 

 
V. TAHOE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT (TTD) CONSENT ITEMS 
 

A. Review and Acceptance of the District’s Financial Statement of Operations for 
March 2018 

B. Authorize the Renewal of the District’s Line of Credit with Nevada State Bank 
for One Million Dollars for Purposes of Cash Flow Management for District 
Operations 

C. Adopt TTD’s Updated Drug and Alcohol Policy to Include New Regulatory 
Changes by the U.S. Department of Transportation to the Testing Regulations 

D. Authorize the District Manager to Award and Enter into a Contract with The 
Aftermarket Parts Company for Wheelchair Lift/Ramp and Parts for the 
Purposes of Maintaining and Repairing TTD’s Bus Fleet 

E. Present Comments Received to Date on Sustainable Transit Service Options 
 
Mr. Treabess motioned to approve the consent calendar, Ms. Novasel 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
VI. TAHOE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT (TTD) BUSINESS ITEMS  

 
A. Nomination and Election of Chairman and Vice-Chairman for Fiscal Years 

2019 Through 2020 
Mr. Teshara expressed his interest in remaining Chairman.  Mr. Teshara 
opened nominations for Chairman.  Ms. Berkbigler nominated Mr. Teshara for 
Chairman.  Ms. Novasel seconded the nomination. No other nominations were 
made.  The Board voted unanimously to elect Mr. Teshara as Chairman.  
 
Mr. Teshara opened nominations for Vice-Chair.  Ms. Maloney expressed her 
interest in being Vice-Chair.  Ms. Novasel nominated Ms. Maloney for Vice-
Chair.  Ms. Berkbigler seconded the nomination.  No other nominations were 
made.  Ms. Novasel made the motion to elect Ms. Maloney as Vice-Chair.  
Ms. Berkbigler seconded the motion.  The Board voted unanimously to elect 
Ms. Maloney as Vice-Chair. 
 
Action Requested:  For Possible Action 

  



Tahoe Transportation Board Meeting Minutes – June 2018 5 

 
B. Discussion and Possible Action Steps to Address Local and Regional Funding 

for a Ten Year Target of Transportation and Transit System Improvements 
Mr. Hasty reviewed this item.  Ms. Maloney suggested adding the match 
amounts related to the funding, in order to discuss how to leverage the dollars 
in different ways.  Mr. Kraatz commented that the consultant needs to look at 
how the funding initiative effort coordinates with other funding initiatives basin-
wide.  Mr. Treabess noted the Board needs to stay involved, so they can keep 
their organizations involved. 
 
Action Requested:  For Discussion and Possible Direction 
 

C. Construction Status Update of the SR 89/Fanny Bridge Community 
Revitalization Project and Potential Site Visit 
Mr. Nygaard reviewed this item and gave a presentation.  Mr. Hasty offered a 
tour of the project site after the meeting. 
 
Erin Casey, Placer County Executive Office, commented her office has been 
working closely with TTD staff regarding messaging for the business 
community and has really appreciated working with them.     
 
Action Requested:  Informational Only 
 

VII. DISTRICT MANAGER REPORT 
Mr. Hasty reported he met with the Deputy Attorney General regarding the US50 
project and he is hopeful to receive concurrence on the EIR/EIS/EIS from their 
office within the next 30 days. 

 
VIII. BOARD, COMMISSION MEMBER AND STAFF COMMENTS 

Ms. Glickert announced the Linking Tahoe website has been revamped and 
handed out the new brochures. 
 
Ms. Maloney thanked staff for attending Carson City’s interregional transit 
meeting. 
 
Ms. Rosenberg noted she and NDOT’s Deputy Director met with Caltrans and 
CalSTA to discuss bi-state activities.  
 
Ms. Novasel commented Lime Bikes rolled out their electric scooters and would 
like to have them extend their service to Meyers. 
 
Mr. Kraatz would like to see Lime Bikes at the North Shore, but added the need to 
be sensitive to the local bike companies.  He added there is funding in place for 
pedestrian improvements in downtown Tahoe City, including a pedestrian signal 
at Grove Street.   
 
Mr. Teshara announced he was named president of California Association of 
Councils of Governments in May. 
 



Tahoe Transportation Board Meeting Minutes – June 2018 6 

Mr. Treabess congratulated Mr. Teshara and announced his retirement from the 
North Lake Tahoe Resort Association and his departure from the Transportation 
Management Association. 

 
IX. PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS 

Liz Otterstrom, South Lake Tahoe resident, appreciated Mr. Hasty’s work on the 
transit changes and offered her assistance.  
  

X. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 11:23 a.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted: 
 
Judi Allen 
Executive Assistant 
Clerk to the Board 
Tahoe Transportation District 
 

 
(The above meeting was recorded in its entirety, anyone wishing to listen to the 
aforementioned tapes, please contact Judi Allen, Clerk to the Board, (775) 589-5502.)  

 



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 1 
 

 TTD Board Retreat Summary Report 
Parasol, Incline Village 

Friday, March 9, 2018 
11:00am-3:00pm 

SUMMARY 

The TTD Board convened for a regular order business meeting on March 9, 2018 while 
also setting aside four hours for a facilitated “retreat” to help the Board discuss and 
settle on preferred strategies and actions designed to advance the TTD mission over 
the next five years (i.e. through 2023).  

The Board Item per the published agenda (see next page) established the following 
intention: Conduct Facilitated Workshop with Board and Staff to Develop Strategic 
Direction and Action Steps In Regard To Partnerships and Funding. 

The TTD Board established three Strategic Initiatives to guide priority focus for the 
Board and staff 2018-2023:    

Strategy 1: Provide Education to Enable the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
(TRPA) and their Governing Board (GB) and Local Governments to 
Partner with TTD to Address Mutual Transportation Priorities 

Strategy 2: Establish a Sustainable Regional Funding Source 

Strategy 3: Pursue Baseline Operational Funding   

The Action Plan outlining milestones preferred by Board Members is presented in table 
format on pages 4, 5, and 6. The plan outlines a straightforward presentation of the 
input provided by the Board during the session, with some slight re-organization by the 
Facilitator.  However, a “rapid action plan” of this type still requires additional refinement 
by staff to determine an effective approach to achieving the desired milestones.  

Further, it is recommended here that the Action Plan be applied as a general framework 
for further Board deliberation in the form of targeted agenda in future meetings. This is a 
“begin with the end in mind” approach which enables the Board to retain clarity about 
desired five year outcomes, while discussing and deciding the optimal pathways on an 
iterative basis. 

Following the Action Plan are a series of input lists (pages 7, 8, and 9) produced during 
the retreat in which Board members were invited to respond to the following prompts: 

 



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 2 
 

1. TTD Exists To: (WHY) 

2. TTD Provides / Delivers / Creates: (WHAT) 

3. TTD Is / Will Be Most Effective / Produce Best Results When: (HOW) 

4. In The Next One To Five Years, TTD Hopes To Achieve / Complete: 

(OUTCOMES) 

This framework enabled the Board to work in pairs and threes to consider, discuss, and 
provide inputs that helped to create an effective context for the Strategy/Action Plan 
session which followed.  

Page 10 provides a concise summary of a facilitated discussion in which the Board was 
guided to consider an “ASK/ OFFER” approach to prospective and desired relationships 
between (A) TTD and TRPA, and (B) TTD and Local Governments. This discussion was 
devised to provide the Board with a way to think about building partnership strategies 
based upon a “mutual exchange of value” (i.e. both Ask and Offer). This dialogue 
provided an essential precursor to the Action Planning exercise which followed, since 
the TTD Board was very clear in asserting the necessity for strong and effective 
partnerships as a key to the future success of the Tahoe Transportation District.  

 

 

 

 



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 3 
 

Agenda and Process 
 

Board Item: CONDUCT FACILITATED WORKSHOP WITH BOARD AND STAFF TO 
DEVELOP STRATEGIC DIRECTION AND ACTION STEPS IN REGARD TO 

PARTNERSHIPS AND FUNDING (p.31) 
 

Time Agenda Elements Process and Materials 
 

11:00 Frame the Workshop 
 

 

 Part 1: Issues, Needs, 
Priorities, Contradictions – 
Discussion to achieve clarity 
about strategic directions and 
essential partners 

Unique value proposition for TTD: what can we 
do alone? What can we only do with partners? 

Partners: Who are they? what we will “ask and 
offer” >> framing for MOU’s 

Identify critical initiatives (establish MOU’s, 
seek funding, corridor projects…) 

 

12:30 Break Lunch 

12:45 Part 2: Strategic Action Plan 
with time increments including 
1 year, 2 years, 5 years 

Prospective Initiatives as pathways 

Establish milestones at critical junctures 

Clarify, simplify, reduce scope to ‘must do/ 
should also’ framework 

 

2:45 Debrief for Path Forward Secure Board Commitments 

3:00 Adjourn  



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 4 
 

Tahoe Transportation District Board Action Plan 
Strategic Initiatives 2018-2023:    
Strategy 1: Provide Education to Enable the GB, TRPA and Local Governments to Partner with TTD to Address Mutual Transportation 

Priorities 
Strategy 2: Establish a Sustainable Regional Funding Source 
Strategy 3: Pursue Baseline Operational Funding   

 
 
 

Strategies 
 

Quick Start 
Action 

TIMELINE AND MILESTONES – March 2018 to March 2023 

6 Months 1 Year 2 Years 5 Years 

S1: Provide Education to 
Enable the GB, TRPA, and 
Local Governments to 
Partner with TTD to Address 
Mutual Transportation 
Priorities  
 

Use TRPA/ GB 
Retreat to 
Open the Door 
to a New TTD 
Relationship 

Local Governance TRPA 
Committee Consolidated 
Overview of Transportation and 
Transit Services, Challenges, 
and Needs 

Outcome of Learning Journey 
is Agreement & Partnership 
Between TRPA/ GB & TTD on 
Obtaining a Sustainable 
Revenue Funding Source to 
Achieve Transportation 
Projects, Successful Transit & 
Threshold Attainments (reduce 
TMDL Off Roadways) 

Present 
Transportation 
Plan to TRPA 
GB Retreat for 
Long Term 
Strategic 
Planning 

Free Bus 
Service 

 
 Agendize a Series of GB 

Briefings on Transportation 
Including Visitor Based 
Revenue Sources 

BDR for 2019 Session (6 
Months to 1 Year) 

  

 

 Learning Journey for TRPA/ 
GB Through Education 
Briefings to Grasp the Meaning 
of the Relationship of TRPA, 
TTD, and Threshold 
Attainment; 3-6 Months 

Memorialization of Partnership 
Document 

  

 
 TMPO/ TMA Roles & 

Responsibilities Training & 
Presentation to TRPA/ GB 

Develop MOU   

 
 Regional Agreement on TTD 

Roles/ Responsibilities 
   

 
 Develop Presentation and Get 

on Local Government Agendas 
   



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 5 
 

 
 

Strategies 
 

Quick Start 
Action 

TIMELINE AND MILESTONES – March 2018 to March 2023 

6 Months 1 Year 2 Years 5 Years 

S2: Establish a Sustainable 
Regional Funding Source 

Consultant 
Report on 
Regional 
Revenue 
Options 

Vet/ Share State Funding 
Proposal with Partners to Gain 
Broader Support 

Nevada Approval of ART IX 
Changes 

California 
Approval of ART 
IX Changes 

Lake Tahoe 
Basin Visitor 
Based Revenue 
Source Defined 

 

 Presentations to TRPA & GB 
on Transportation; Create a 
Lobby to State Legislatures for 
Projects & Operational Funding 
 

Legislation Passed on ART IX 
Change in Authority 

Article IX 
Prohibitions 
Repealed 

TTD is 
Exercising Its 
Bonding 
Authority 

 

 Oversight Recommendation TRPA Establish Transportation 
Subcommittee 

Develop 
Program of 
Projects for 
Visitor Based 
Revenue Source 

Basin Entrance 
Fee or 
Alternative 
Revenue Source 
Adopted 

 
 Recreation Travel Demand 

Project 
Continue Project Delivery   

 
 Provide Presentation to TRPA 

on How Similar Regions Fund 
Transportation (and What They 
Provide)  

   

 
 Basin Critical Mass Political 

Support 
   

 
 Initiate Polling to See What 

Kind of Funding/ Tax is 
“Sellable” 

   

 

 Provide Specific Transit 
Enhancement That Would Be 
Done if $$ Were Available (as 
Opposed to General 
“Increased Service”) 
 

   

 
 

TRPA & TTD Staff Agreements 
on Mutual Objectives 

   



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 6 
 

 
 

Strategies 
 

Quick Start 
Action 

TIMELINE AND MILESTONES – March 2018 to March 2023 

6 Months 1 Year 2 Years 5 Years 

S3: Pursue Baseline 
Operational Funding   

Follow Up on 
General 
Funding 
Requirements 
– State of 
California 

May Revise Approval Develop Value-Add 
Presentation for Local 
Governments and Other 
Partners to Garner TTD 
Support (Local $$) 

Established 
State (CA/NV) 
Funding Line 
Items 

Federal Funds 
for Capital 
Purchases Only 

 
 California Budget Strategy and 

Champion 
Part of Nevada State Budget    

 
 Local Government 

Contributions 
Part of California State Budget   

 
  Secure CA & NV Short Term 

Transportation Funding 
  

 



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 7 
 

Board Workshop Flip Chart Summaries – March 9, 2018 
 
 

1. TTD EXISTS TO: 

• Provide transportation / transit 
• Get capital projects into the ground 
• Provide employment opportunities 
• To secure transportation / transit revenues 
• Implement! 
• Cross jurisdictional solutions via partnerships and collaboration 

 Gap filler / added capacity 
• Operate public transit 
• Solve problems 
• Improve the quality of life for residents and visitors 
• Connect our communities 
• Challenge the status quo 
• Get things done (GSD) 
• Safe, reliable, cost effective, clean and affordable transit 

 Fun, Fast, Free & Frequent 
• Promote and market transit and multi-modal 
• Get regional goals down with others 
• Connect communities in and outside Basin 
• Support local businesses 
• Broker cross-jurisdictional solutions 

 
 

2. TTD PROVIDES / DELIVERS / CREATES: 
 

• Team Winners 
• Transit System 
• Funding opportunities – apply, pursue for transportation 
• Basin-wide planning 
• Community career opportunities 
• Effective GHG reduction 
• Frustration opportunity in delivery 
• Solutions 
• Partnership benefits 
• Service to community 
• Outreach on community needs 
• Contributes to Tahoe experience 
• Contribute to economy 
• Create mobility projects for the community 



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 8 
 

• Create partnerships 
• Delivery transit services and CIP transit projects 
• Provide customer service 
• Deliver environmental improvements (VMT & GHG) 
• Innovative solutions 

 Transit 
 ITS 
 Trail 
 Parking 
 Mobility 

• Effective management solutions 
• Efficient programs 
• Performance measures 
• Audit results / responses 
•  Quality experiences for users 
• Community transformative projects 

 
 

3. TTD IS / WILL BE MOST EFFECTIVE / PRODUCE BEST RESULTS WHEN: 
 

• Staffed 
• Supported 
• Sustainable local funding source 
• Released from Compact prohibitions 
• Clear, concise, and defined roles 
• Lead agency 
• Sustainably funded and staffed 
• Have necessary assets 
• Enhanced operational authority 
• Recognized leader of partnerships 
• Free of revenue prohibitions, such as an entry fee to the Basin 
• Fully staffed 
• Fully funded 
• Full regional transit put in place 
• When are aligned in direction and effort 
• We build the bus facility(s) needed 
• We have a stronger public/private partnership 
• We have a stronger public/public partnership 
• Recognized role and resource Basin-wide 
• Workforce development / apprenticeship program / partnerships 
• Focuses on priorities 
• At the partnership table 



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 9 
 

 
4. IN THE NEXT ONE TO FIVE YEARS, TTD HOPES TO ACHIEVE / COMPLETE: 

 
• Fanny Bridge 
• Complete acquisitions 

 Right of way and housing (including $$) 
• Sustainable transit program 
• Established steady general fund revenue source 
• Visitor-based funding 
• Fleet / administrative facility 
• US50 under construction 
• Central corridor 
• Bi-state and local government financial support 
• Employer of choice 
• Complete Hwy 50 project 
• Commence / complete ferry project 
• Complete “around the Lake” bike path 
• Basin-wide free / affordable bus service 
• Complete corridor plans 
• TTD workforce housing facility 
• 100% renewable bus service 
• New TTD home for administration and assets 
• Cross-lake ferry terminals in PS&E 
• Average fleet life less than 10 years old 
• Be fully funded 
• Basin-wide transit system 
• Successful workforce development program 
• Desirable employer 
• Successful quality assurance program 
• Capitalized project program 
• Article IX updated and in full use 
• Key mobility hubs built or under construction 
• Ferry project underway 

  



TTD Board Retreat Summary – March 9, 2018 Page 10 
 

(A) TRPA & TTD 
 

ASK OFFER 
 Ability to get funding  Accelerated attainment of thresholds 
 Clarify roles  Implementation of RTP 
 Respect  Clarity of process – MOU or ? 
 Alignment  Authority to bring 
 “Leverage each other” o Resources 

o Connections o Self-reliance 
o Federal and 2 State 

relationships  Expand the total 

 Update Compact to: o Scope of resources for TRPA 
goals 

o Article IX  Alignment 
o Remove restrictions  Local knowledge – How To 

 Political access – T.O.D.  GB education on transportation solutions 
 Transportation as priority  50/50 partnership 
 Joint Board meeting  
 Support the ‘middle’  

o Focused solutions  
o Supports projects  
o Advise on transit  

 
 

(B) LOCAL GOVERNMENT & TTD 
 

ASK OFFER 
 Support monies  Exchange of Board participation 

o e.g. Douglas gas tax for Hwy 
50 realignment  Expanded implementation capacity 

o Maintenance  Knowledge of TTD projects-value added 
 Political support  Access to expanded capital, e.g. Federal 

  “Taking heat” 
  Transit 

 

 



http://www.trpa.org/transportation/
http://www.trpa.org/transportation/
http://www.trpa.org/transportation/
http://www.trpa.org/transportation/
mailto:jweber@trpa.org
mailto:jweber@trpa.org
































































mailto:gfink@tahoetransportation.org
mailto:gfink@tahoetransportation.org

















































	All items on this agenda are action items unless otherwise noted.  Items on the agenda may be taken out of order.  The Board may combine two or more items for consideration.  The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to...
	ADP7D7D.tmp
	SUMMARY
	Agenda and Process
	Tahoe Transportation District Board Action Plan
	Board Workshop Flip Chart Summaries – March 9, 2018

	7-a April Financials-Attach A.pdf
	BALSHEET
	P&L 
	General
	CIP
	TO
	Transit Schedule




